Public Document Pack

AB

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY 16 JULY 2014
7.00 PM
Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations
At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda,
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in
relation to any items under consideration.

3.

Minutes of the Meeting Held on 26 March 2014

4.

Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

3-8

The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is published
and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the expiry of 3
working days after the publication of the decision (not including the date of
publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is received from any two
Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Commissions. If a request for
call-in of a decision is received, implementation of the decision remains
suspended for consideration by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or
Commission.

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
The Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee will sit for item 5 only on the agenda.
5.

Role of the Committee in its Capacity as the Statutory Crime and
Disorder Committee

9 - 12

6.

A Strategy for Culture, Recreation and the Arts for Peterborough

13 - 32

7.

Review of 2013/2014 and Work Programme for 2014/15

33 - 44

8.

Forward Plan of Key Decisions

45 - 60

9.

Date of Next Meeting
3 September 2014

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms. Some of the
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact
Dania Castagliuolo on 01733 452347 as soon as possible.
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral. The duty Beadle will assume
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Committee Members:
Councillors: N Khan (Chairman), J Stokes (Vice Chairman), S Day, J Peach, L Forbes,
J Okonkowski and J R Fox
Substitutes: Councillors: B Saltmarsh, S Lane, M Jamil and Y Maqbool
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Dania Castagliuolo on telephone
01733 452347 or by email – dania.castagliuolo@peterborough.gov.uk

AB
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD IN THE
BOURGES & VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH
ON
WEDNESDAY 26 MARCH 2014
Present:

Councillors Lee (Chairman), Day (Vice Chairman) Kreling, Over, Johnson,
Forbes and Fox

Also Present:

Councillor Casey

Cabinet Advisor to the Cabinet Member for Culture,
Recreation and Waste Management

Councillor Elsey

Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Waste
Management

Mark Woolner

Cambridgeshire Constabulary

Gary Goose
Adrian Chapman

Safer and Stronger Peterborough Strategic Manager
Assistant Director for Communities and Targeted
Services
Strategic Partnerships Manager
Chief Executive, Vivacity
Chairman, Vivacity
Head of Finance, Vivacity
Head of Commercial Operations
Governance Officer

Officers in
Attendance:

Dominic Hudson
Kevin Tighe
Sheila Smith
Pam Whitbread
Annette Joyce
Dania Castagliuolo
1.

Apologies
Apologies were received from Councillor Simons. Councillor Over was in attendance as Substitute for
Councillor Simons.

2.

Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations
There were no declarations of Interest.

3.

Minutes of the meeting held on 15 January 2014
The minutes of the Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 15
January 2014 were approved as an accurate record.

4.

Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions
There were no requests for Call-in to consider.

5.

Scrutiny in a Day Overview Report
The report was introduced by the Head of Neighbourhood Services to provide the Committee with the
overview report, detailing the outcomes from the joint Scrutiny in a Day event which was held on 17
January 2014. The event looked at understanding and managing the impacts of Welfare Reform on
communities in Peterborough.
The following recommendations and lines of enquiry were captured from the day by the Strong and
Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee:

3

1. To explore the impact of the cessation of the Local Welfare Provision funding from the
Department of Work and Pensions and develop recommendations to Cabinet on how the
Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme could be sustained.
2. To raise awareness of the ongoing reforms, the impacts and support available with
communities, Councillors and partners.
3. To explore opportunities of how investing in local community groups could help to prevent and
tackle poverty.
4. To receive a report on the extent of gambling within the city and develop actions to mitigate the
impact of gambling such as education, awareness raising and prevention.
Observations and questions were raised around the following areas:
•
•

•

•

Members commented that the whole day was very interesting to them and a real eye opener to the
real problems that the people of Peterborough face daily.
Members queried how recommendation four, under Strong and Supportive Scrutiny Committee ‘To
receive a report on the extent of gambling within the city and develop actions to mitigate the impact
of gambling such as education, awareness raising and prevention, was going to be carried out. The
Assistant Director for Communities and Targeted Services advised Members that, the most
revealing fact of the day was the extent of gambling in the city and suggested that the working
group was formed in order to take recommendations forward to Licensing, Planning and voluntary
agencies.
Members queried how introducing education regarding Payday Loans to schools was progressing.
Members were advised that the council was hoping to include this issue within the syllabus from
September, through the Safer Peterborough Partnership.
The Committee commented that they would like to thank the team who worked on the event for
their hard work in making the event such a success.

RECOMMENDATION
The committee noted the report and agreed to take the recommendations within the report forward.
6.

Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2014 – 2017
The Safer and Stronger Peterborough Strategic Manager introduced Mark Woolner to the Committee,
who would be taking over his role as Safer and Stronger Peterborough Strategic Manager from 1 April
2014.
The report was presented by the Safer and Stronger Peterborough Strategic Manager to introduce the
new Safer Peterborough Partnership three year Strategic Plan (2014 – 2017). The plan was a statutory
requirement under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (as amended).
Members were asked to comment and make any observations to contribute to an agreed version
which could be recommended for Cabinet approval.
Observations and questions were raised around the following areas:
•

•

Members asked for an explanation regarding their role as a Scrutiny Committee to ensure that the
Safer Peterborough Partnership was being held to account. The Safer and Stronger Peterborough
Strategic Manager advised Members that over the last year the Committee had added more weight
and depth to the scrutiny process by looking at individual areas of the Safer Peterborough
Partnership Plan. This was the right approach to take and he suggested that the role of the
Committee continued to evolve in the same way.
Members requested examples of how Crime was dealt with at the root cause. Members were
informed that the Integrated Offender Management Programme tackled the root causes well.
Agencies worked together to ensure people were released from prison with a Release Plan which
helped offenders integrate back in to the community.

4

•

•

Members queried who would have access to the delivery team, under the new management.
Members were advised that the new delivery team fell under the remit of the Safer Peterborough
Partnership.
Members commented that public confidence was the biggest challenge and felt that the police were
not working with communities. People had to wait up to fifteen minutes on the phone to report a
crime, this did not restore reassurance within communities. The assistant Director for Communities
and Targeted Services advised Members that the only way to build public confidence was to deliver
and gain results. The new team would comprise of Police Officers, Safer Peterborough Partnership
Staff and Council Officers. He requested that the Committee helped shape a reporting line in to the
team for all fifty seven Councillors.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee recommended to the Safer and Stronger Peterborough Strategic Manager that the
following was added to the Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2014 – 2017:
•
•
•

Details of how public confidence in the police and Local Authority will be increased, making it a
key area of work and describing how this would be monitored.
Details of the role of Scrutiny within the plan, along with an explanation of the role of the
Committee.
The inclusion of the Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee in the Structure
chart.

ACTION AGREED
The Committee noted the report and agreed for the Safer and Stronger Peterborough Strategic
Manager to deliver a detailed report at the next meeting, explaining how the Safer Peterborough
Partnership Plan should be scrutinised by the committee over the next three years.
7.

Vivacity – Annual Performance Report and Draft Business Plan 2014 - 2019
The Cabinet Advisor to the Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Waste Management
introduced the report which gave the Committee an opportunity to hear from and question both officers
of the Council and Vivacity, on Vivacity’s performance in 2013 – 14 and in relation to Vivacity’s draft
business plan for 2014 – 19. Key points highlighted were:
•

•
•
•

•
•

Vivacity had delivered an impressive range of services and events to the people of
Peterborough this year. The most noticeable achievement in the year had been the opening of
the brand new Hampton Premier leisure facility at Hampton.
Performance, as measured in terms of visitor numbers, remained strong in respect of sports,
libraries and the Key Theatre.
The Council had continued to invest in Vivacity’s services, including nearly £1m of capital
improvements to the athletics track and the Lido.
Looking to the future, Vivacity was working closely with the Council to ensure that services
provided continued to offer both a compelling and value for money offer. The draft business
plan reflected the need for Vivacity to continue to grow commercially in order for it to thrive as
an organisation in the future.
Vivacity had adopted, with support from the Council, a balanced scorecard to reflect its
performance.
The draft business plan, which was attached to the report, had been developed by Vivacity and
had not yet been approved by either Peterborough City Council or the Vivacity Board of
Trustees.

The Committees comments would be considered in developing the final draft.
The Committee was asked to review and comment on Vivacity’s current performance and the Draft
business plan for 2014 – 2019.

5

Observations and questions were raised around the following areas:
•

•
•

•

•

•
•
•

•

•
•

Members commented that the report did not mention Heritage and queried why this was not
included. The Chief Executive of Vivacity advised Members that there had been a dip around
Heritage as Flag Fen and Longthorpe Tower had closed and key members of staff were on long
term sick leave. This issue had been addressed.
Members commented that they found it difficult to read the score card on page 86 of the report and
requested that the score card was sent to them quarterly.
Members queried why on page 90 of the report it stated that the Council was going to reduce their
funding to Vivacity by 50% when the budget report quoted a 100% reduction. The Head of Finance
for Vivacity informed Members that the funding from the Council would be reduced by 50% this
year and a further 50% next year. The Chief Executive of Vivacity advised the Committee that the
entire cost of the Arts Festival would be picked up by Vivacity in future, as it was important that the
city had an Arts Festival.
Members queried whether Peterborough was going to lose services as a result of the savings that
were required for 2018/19. The Chief Executive of Vivacity was unable to give an answer to this
query as it was still being explored with the Council and assured Members that Vivacity would do
everything in its power to make sure services were not reduced. The Cabinet Advisor to the
Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Waste Management commented that the main driver
over the next few years for Vivacity would be about increasing income.
Members commented that performances in open spaces should be built in to the planning of new
builds within the city. The Chairman of Vivacity agreed with this comment and advised Members
that Vivacity should be working closely with developers and was about to embark on a new Public
Strategy. Money was an issue although working in partnership would be useful. Vivacity were in the
process of taking over the assets of the Sculpture Club, which was very exciting.
Members congratulated Vivacity on last year’s pantomimes and hoped that this year they would be
just as good.
Members thanked Councillor Elsey for resolving the disabled access issues in Hampton and
suggested that access audits for disabled people were carried out in future on big builds.
Members were concerned that there was no family changing room at the new Hampton Leisure
Centre. The Chief Executive of Vivacity agreed that it was an error not to have a family changing
room built in to the new leisure centre although this issue would not be resolved as there was not
enough room to fit one in.
Members queried how Vivacity was planning to make the Theatre break even. The Head of
Finance for Vivacity advised Members that it would be challenging. Vivacity was looking to increase
the secondary spend and there were plans in place to refurbish the Café and Bar areas.
Members suggested that merchandise was sold at shows to increase profit. The Chief Executive of
Vivacity informed Members that this already took place for certain shows.
Members queried what the role of the business development manager was. Members were
advised that there were three areas of focus for the Business Development Manage:
1. Existing business and driving income harder.
2. Growing business within Peterborough.
3. Grow business beyond the city (e.g. sporting facilities in other towns and cities.
The Cabinet Advisor to the Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Waste Management
informed the Committee that Libraries and Heritage were currently very active on Twitter

ACTION AGREED
The committee noted the report and agreed for Vivacity to:
•
•
•

Send quarterly score cards, in the form of a briefing note, to demonstrate Vivacity’s
performance.
Provide them with the third quarter score card to them in larger print.
Come back in 12 months to present a review of the business plan.

The Committee agreed for the Head of Cultural Services to investigate the possibility for junior
swimming lessons to be at the end of the Hampton Leisure Centre pool adjacent to the café, so that
parents could watch.

6

8.

Commercial Operations Service Plan 2014 – 2015
The report which was a Commercial Operations Service Plan for 2014/15 was introduced by the Head
of Commercial operations and included an overview of the following:
• Services
• Performance
• Expenditure/income and service costs
• Staffing numbers and staffing issues within each service
• Opportunities for each service
• Service threats
• Service Objectives for 2014/15
The Committee was asked to note and comment on the work of the Commercial Operations and
propose further scrutiny in relation to its business activities.
Observations and questions were raised around the following areas:
•
•

•

•
•

Members commented that they were pleased with the suggestions for the Market to have a food
quarter as this would encourage shoppers to the Market.
Members queried whether there were any developments on attracting independent traders to the
Market. The Head of Commercial Operations informed Members that the independent traders were
part of a property group with Baker Storey Matthews and the Council was always trying to influence
independence.
Members queried if there were any plans in place to have Christmas Markets in the city centre and
a fireworks display on New Year’s Eve. Members were advised that there had been a lot of interest
from high quality Markets, although the Council could not obtain sponsorship for a fireworks display
as it was too expensive.
Members commented that they were looking forward to the Cultural Festivals.
Members queried why there were so many vehicles in Cathedral Square as it made it look untidy.
Members were advised that this issue was being addressed by adding more enforcement to
Cathedral Square.

ACTION AGREED
The Committee noted the Commercial Operations Plan for 2014 to 2015.
9.

Forward Plan of Key Decisions
The Committee received the latest version of the Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions, containing
key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members
would make during the course of the following four months. Members were invited to comment on the
Plan and, where appropriate, identify any relevant areas for inclusion in the Committee’s work
programme.
ACTION AGREED
The Committee noted the Forward Plan of Key Decisions

10.

Work Programme 2014/2015
The purpose of the report was to provide the Committee with a list of possible items to be included in
the Committee’s 2014/2015 work programme.
The following items had been provided by the Communities Directorate and were provided as a
starting point for discussion:
• Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan Thematic Report
• Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan Annual Refresh
• Selective Licensing or equivalent scheme

7

• Scrutiny in a Day outcomes
• Community Assets, Rationalisation Programme
• Review of the Peterborough Communities and Safety Delivery Model
The committee was asked to note these items for the 2014 – 15 work programme and discuss in
further detail at the next Group Representatives meeting, where the work programme could be
expanded further.
ACTION AGREED
Members agreed for the following to be included in the Work Programme for the next municipal year:
•
•

Connecting Families
Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan

The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 9.15pm

8

CHAIRMAN

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 5

16 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of the Head of Community and Safety Services
Report Author – Mark Woolner
Contact Details – 01733 863779

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE IN ITS CAPACITY AS THE STATUTORY CRIME AND
DISORDER COMMITTEE
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

This report sets out the role of the committee in its capacity as the Crime and Disorder
Committee, particularly in scrutinising the Safer Peterborough Partnership plan over the next
three years.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That the committee note the content of this report.

2.2

That the committee agree to the schedule and methodology of how the SPP Plan will be
scrutinised as detailed in this report and in replacement of the outdated protocol for the scrutiny
of crime and disorder issues as previously agreed by this committee on 25 November 2009.

3.

LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1

The Sustainable Community Strategy produced by the Greater Peterborough Partnership sets
out the direction for the overall strategic direction of Peterborough. The Safer Peterborough
Partnership Plan sets out how the Community Safety Partnership will contribute to the overall
vision of the Sustainable Community Strategy and specifically how it can contribute to the
outcome of “making Peterborough more cohesive and safer” so that people of all ages and
abilities can live, work and play in a prosperous and successful Peterborough without undue
crime or fear of crime.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

HM Government set out certain requirements for Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) within
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. One such requirement is for CSPs to produce a strategy
detailing how its responsibilities for reducing crime and disorder, combatting substance misuse
and reducing re-offending will be met. In Peterborough, this requirement is met through the
creation and publishing of the Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan. The current plan has been
set for the three year period 2014-2017.

4.2

Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 extended the remit of local authorities to scrutinise
the functioning of CSPs, requiring every local authority to ensure that it has a committee, the
“crime and disorder committee”, with power to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other
action taken, in connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and
disorder functions, and to make reports or recommendations to the local authority with respect to
the discharge of those functions.

9

4.3

In Peterborough, the statutory function imposed by section 19 is covered in part 3, section 4.2 of
the Council Constitution, which directs that the Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny
Committee undertake all of the local authority’s statutory functions in accordance with sections 19
and 20 and associated regulations of the Police and Justice Act 2006 relating to the scrutiny of
crime and disorder matters, including acting as the Council’s crime and disorder committee.

4.4

Within the Safer Peterborough Partnership, the responsible authorities are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

Peterborough City Council
Cambridgeshire Constabulary
Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service
Clinical Commissioning Group
Probation

4.5

Cooperating authorities are local groups or agencies which contribute significantly to community
safety which the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 make key partners in the setting and delivering of
objectives. In the Safer Peterborough Partnership, Cross Keys Homes, representing Registered
Social Landlords in the city, is a cooperating authority.

4.6

Safer Peterborough Partnership also invites others to join the Partnership on the basis that they
can assist in the delivery of the objectives of the partnership. Current invitees to participate
include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

HMP Peterborough
Peterborough Racial Equality Council
Peterborough Centre for Voluntary Services (representing the voluntary sector)
The One Service
The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Job Centre Plus
The lead Cabinet Member

4.7

The role of the crime and disorder committee is focussed on the work of the Safer Peterborough
Partnership as a whole, and also the partners who comprise it insofar as their activities relate to
the Partnership itself.

5.

KEY ISSUES – SCRUTINY OF PLAN

5.1

The Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2014-17 is structured around three partnership
priorities, those being as follows:
•
•
•

5.2

Priority 1 – Addressing victim-based crime by reducing re-offending and protecting our
residents and visitors from harm
Priority 2 – Tackling anti-social behaviour
Priority 3 – Building stronger and more supportive communities

Within those priorities, a number of themes are outlined, each having desired outcomes and
performance indicators to be used as a means of assessing progress towards achieving those
outcomes. Each theme has a named Safer Peterborough Partnership Board lead, and also an
officer lead. The themes are as follows:
•
•
•

Priority 1 – Offender Management, Domestic Abuse & Sexual Violence, Hate Crime,
Substance Misuse, Victims & Witnesses, Communications & Perceptions (Fear of Crime)
Priority 2 – Anti-Social Behaviour, Road Safety
Priority 3 – Changing Communities, Community Cohesion and Vulnerable Groups

10

5.3

The Safer Peterborough Partnership Board meets on a monthly basis. Every other month, the
Board receives a performance report which includes statistical data (being the most recent
available) and other information linked to the agreed performance indicators used to monitor
progress, together with narratives giving context to the statistics as well as an overview of activity
undertaken. This report is used to flag areas of concern for discussion, direction and action as
appropriate. At Board meetings where no performance report is brought, theme leads are invited
to provide more detailed “deep dive” reports into their areas on a planned, rotational basis.

5.4

Underneath the Safer Peterborough Partnership Board sits an SPP Delivery Group, which
comprises the officer leads for each of the themes within the Safer Peterborough Partnership
Plan and also convenes on a monthly basis. It is chaired by the Assistant Director for
Communities and Targeted Services and its role is to scrutinise the performance reports
submitted by each of the thematic working groups which make up the overall governance
structure for the Partnership ahead of presentation to the Partnership Board itself. It is this group
which considers what areas of performance may be of sufficient concern to raise at the
Partnership Board, but it also directs activity to tackle such in the first instance.

5.5

In the year 2013/14, scrutiny of the Safer Partnership Plan was facilitated by tabling a report to
each Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee relating to one of the three
priorities included in the plan. Committee members were then afforded the opportunity to
question representatives from the Partnership or responsible/cooperating authorities within it as
they deemed fit in relation to the report and activity undertaken.

5.6

It is recommended that this approach continues, with a report based around the latest available
Safer Peterborough Partnership Board performance report produced by the Head of Community
and Safety Services (in his role as Head of the Safer Peterborough Partnership team) according
to the following schedule:
•
•
•

Scrutiny Committee meeting to be held on 3 September: Priority 1 – Addressing Crime
Scrutiny Committee meeting to be held on 15 October: Priority 2 – Tackling ASB
Scrutiny Committee meeting to be held on 18 November: Priority 3 – Changing
Communities, Community Cohesion and Vulnerable Groups

This will then leave two further meetings to cover the following:
•
•

Scrutiny Committee meeting to be held on 14 January: Draft annual refresh of Safer
Peterborough Partnership Plan
Scrutiny Committee meeting to be held on 19 March: Approval of annual refresh of Plan

5.7

In terms of enabling appropriate scrutiny, the committee may request the attendance of a
representative of the Partnership or responsible or cooperating authority in order to answer
questions or provide information.

5.8

When the committee makes a report or recommendations which have an impact on crime and
disorder matters officers will send a copy of the report and recommendations to the relevant
responsible or cooperating authorities.

5.9

The committee will consider any Councillor Call for Action requests which relate to crime and
disorder matters.

6.

IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable

7.

CONSULTATION
Not applicable

11

8.

EXPECTED OUTCOMES
That the committee accept the recommendations as detailed in section 2 of this report.

9.

NEXT STEPS
That the decision of the committee, or any further recommendation, is duly recorded.

10.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Police and Justice Act 2006
Council Constitution, version 9 (May 2013)
Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2014-2017
11.

APPENDICES
None

12

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 6

16 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of the Strategic Partnerships Manager – Resources Directorate
Contact Officer(s) – Lisa Helin, Strategic Client Manager: Culture and Leisure
Contact Details - Email: Lisa.Helin@peterborough.gov.uk Telephone: 01733 452386

A STRATEGY FOR CULTURE, RECREATION & THE ARTS FOR PETERBOROUGH
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

To share with Committee members the draft Culture Strategy for Peterborough. Following the
Committee discussion, the strategy will be further developed before approval is sought from Full
Council for the final strategy later in the year.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That Members note this report and the draft strategy attached and provide comments on the
approach and content. In particular, does the Committee:
•
•

support the vision and priorities summarised in 5.2 below?
wish to make any further observations on the strategy to inform the next, final draft?

3.

LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1

Culture and leisure contribute to the following priorities in the Sustainable Community Strategy:- Creating opportunities – tackling inequalities;
- Creating strong and supportive communities; and
- Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

Culture and leisure are long-established priorities of the Council but it is right that five years on from
the publication of the last strategy we take a fresh look at our approach and our priorities, taking into
account the changing profile of Peterborough and the changed economic climate.

5.

A STRATEGY FOR CULTURE, RECREATION AND THE ARTS FOR PETERBOROUGH

5.1

Peterborough City Council is leading/orchestrating the development of a new strategy for culture,
recreation and the arts1 in the city, through wide consultation with partner organisations and
stakeholders. The Cabinet Adviser for Culture, Cllr Graham Casey, has convened a steering group
and with the client team has met with a wide range of interested parties to inform the development
of the strategy.

1

This strategy does not address sport specifically, which will be the subject of further work in the coming year, it is
noted that the council will be producing a new visitor economy strategy, therefore reference is made to this subject
area but no detailed actions are recommended in this document.

13

Key points that have been made by consultees about the strategy include:

5.2

•

Whilst it will be a Council document, it needs to be a strategy for the City;

•

It should be positive – this is an important opportunity to recognise and celebrate how much
Peterborough has to offer;

•

It should be ambitious – and show how we will measure what we are trying to achieve;

•

It should identify and commit to specific priorities – things we can do and/or support that
will make a real difference.

WHAT DOES THE STRATEGY COVER?
The emerging strategy sets out:
Our vision
To bring local, regional, national and international interest in, and acclaim for the city’s cultural offer
based on the variety and quality of the inspiring cultural experiences it offers.
Our priorities
More people, more often – increasing participation in and enjoyment of cultural activities
Peterborough has a range of excellence cultural institutions and programmes which residents can
enjoy. Many residents would like to engage more in cultural activities but encounter a range of
barriers including time, transport, price, relevance of the offer, availability of information and
familiarity. This priority aims to overcome these barriers and enable more people to participate in
cultural activities.
Developing, retaining and attracting people with talent
The strategy will encourage opportunities to open up for the next generation of cultural producers
and practitioners. The document will outline projects that will experiment and innovate with
programmes and locations, and will explore ambitious targets for increasing levels of participation.
There will be a commitment to explore how new skills and career pathways can be developed to
develop and retain talented individuals.
Places to go and things to do – making the best use of our city spaces
This priority is intended to support a stronger cultural infrastructure, making links with the public
realm works and exploiting underutilised spaces within the City. The aim for the strategy is to
support high quality programming and the production of new work through accessing and utilising
space across the City.
The impact we are seeking to have
•

To raise the profile of culture and increase participation within the city.

•

To raise the profile of the city through culture and increase visitor numbers.

Each of these are explored in more detail in the draft strategy attached as Appendix 1.

14

5.3

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT – ENSURING DELIVERY
The development of the strategy is being overseen by the Cultural Strategy Steering Group. This
successful partnership approach, and the subsequent consultation on the strategy, suggests the
need for a small executive group informed by and interconnected with a wider consultative forum.
It is therefore proposed to establish a core delivery group – Culture Peterborough – supported and
informed by a wider creative forums, such as the City Council, Creative People and Places,
Creative Peterborough, Peterborough Cultural partners and Peterborough learning partners.
Together, this alliance of organisations, individuals and artists would take ownership of the strategy
and oversee its delivery.
The consortium will be built around the major cultural institutions in the City. The Forum will be an
open and relatively free-form group that has seamless links with the wider cultural sector.
Specifically, the group will look at ways of involving the commercial and private sector within the
consortium.
The proposed functions of Culture Peterborough will include:
• Inform, own and oversee the delivery of this strategy;
• Provide a voice for the sector;
• Networking, lobbying and information-sharing;
• Seek resources to deliver the strategy;
• Make strategic connections with and contribute to the Local Enterprise Partnership
• Advise on selected projects and programmes;
• Encourage collaboration in the sector;
• Monitor progress on the strategy and other key cultural projects.
The City Council will play a central role in the culture Peterborough group and will support the
development of the Forum. The specific priorities for the Council will include:
• Advocating the importance of culture;
• Supporting partnership working;
• Delivering selected events and programmes;
• Commissioning and funding key programmes and events;
• Linking culture to other key city priorities;
• Liaising with national and regional cultural bodies on behalf of the City.

6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

As budgets become more constrained, the Council will need to ensure the very best possible return
on any continuing investment in discretionary services. Through working in partnership with other
organisations to deliver the cultural strategy, the Council will be able to deliver the outlined priorities
without increasing resources.

7.

CONSULTATION

7.1

This report has been developed with the Cabinet Adviser for Culture and Recreation and discussed
with a wide range of stakeholders, including Vivacity Trustees and officers, arts organisations,
cultural groups and individuals from across the City.

15

8.

NEXT STEPS

8.1

To incorporate the comments made by the Committee into the final document and share with
partners and full Council in September 2014.

9.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act
1985

9.1

Existing Council strategies, the Funding and Management Agreement dated 1 May 2010 between
the Council and Vivacity, and published documents by the Arts Council and Cities outlook 2014

10.

APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix 1 – Draft Cultural strategy

16

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

Peterborough: our city, our culture
2014 – 2019
Draft Culture Strategy

Foreword from Councilor Graham Casey

02

Our ambition for culture in Peterborough

03

Our City now

04

Our legacy

08

Our priorities
i.

More people, more often – increasing participation in
cultural activities

09

ii. Developing, retaining and attracting people with talent

11

iii. Places to go and things to do – making the best use of
our City spaces

13

Moving forward

15

1|Page

17

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

Foreword
Councillor Graham Casey
‘Peterborough: a great place to go, with great things to do’.
Peterborough has been my home for over 25 years.
The City has a diverse cultural offer, one of which it should be proud. Indeed, Peterborough's
culture is unique both with a rich heritage and an ambitious forward looking vision. Peterborough is
a growing city and I am proud to serve as a Councillor for a City that continues to offer a warm
welcome to new residents of all nationalities.
Culture is vital to a confident City; I know the importance and value of culture. As an enthusiastic
supporter and even, at times, performer, I understand the benefits that culture can bring, whether
it’s the simple pleasure of being entertained, being inspired and even challenged.
I want to make it even easier for as many people as possible to see, hear and participate in highquality cultural experiences in Peterborough.
This strategy is not about spending more money. It is both about making the very best use of the
wealth of existing resources and about ensuring there is a long-term return on all of the existing
investments in culture.
The Cultural Strategy recognises the significance of the cultural and creative sectors in making
Peterborough a cultural City, and advocates continued support and investment. It also addresses
concerns facing the sector and considers how to maximise opportunities for the cultural life of
Peterborough to flourish.
The cultural strategy builds on this and goes on to outline strengths, challenges, actions and
aspirations.
The strategy identifies priorities for the City Council and our cultural partners that will help provide
the leadership and coordination required.
I believe that the cultural offer, the activities, the organisations and individuals, the buildings and the
inspirational work that goes on must be recognised and supported for the good of the future of the
City.
The culture statagy encompasses Arts, Heritage, Libraries and public space. The strategy team has
undertaken a wide range of research and consultation activities to develop a close understanding of
Peterborough’s cultural sector and potential actions for the cultural steering group and partners to
implement. A separate strategy is being developed for our sporting activities.
Finally I would like to commend all our cultural partners that strive to make a real difference in the
City. I am proud of the work that we lead as a Council and the work produced through our strategic
partner Vivacity.

2|Page

18

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

I hope this strategy will help galvanise the City’s cultural organisations and individuals to work
together to help deliver our shared vision for culture in Peterborough.

Peterborough: our city, our culture

Our Vision

•

To bring local, regional, national and international interest in, and acclaim for the City based on
the variety and quality of our cultural offer.

Our Priorities
•

To further increase participation in and enjoyment of cultural activities and celebrate our
diversity – culture, connecting and reflecting our communities

•

To attract, develop, promote, retain and attract talent, including developing the local creative
economy, complementing the city’s growth

•

To create places and spaces for culture – using the public realm and our green open spaces to
ensure there are ‘places to go and things to do’

Our Legacy
•

To raise the profile of culture and participation within the City

•

To raise the profile of the City through culture and incresase visitor numbers

3|Page

19

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

Culture in our city today
While Peterborough’s history may stretch back to the Bronze Age and earlier, in demographic terms,
Peterborough is a youthful city, which makes the City distinct to many other cities and areas in the
UK. It is also very multicultural, much more so than many other cities and areas in the UK. The
Strategy aims to reflect this dynamism in cultural activities and audiences, and sees this mix as an
opportunity.
These characteristics make Peterborough an exciting place to live and work.

•

Peterborough is the fastest growing City in the UK, the population has increased by 17% over the
last decade to 183,000 (from (157,000)1

•

The combination of a baby boom and inward migration from many countries including many in
Eastern Europe has driven growth requiring 6,000 more primary school places.

• Peterborough’s overall population is young – more than a third of the City population is under 25.
•

The City is diverse, with 20% of the population born outside of the UK and the City has the only
primary school in the country where all of the pupils have English as a second language.

Peterborough has a thriving – but disparate – cultural offer already. To understand Peterborough’s
starting point the strategy takes into account the significant amount of work undertaken in this area
over the last two years.

•

The City Council Commercial operations team provides a wide range of cultural activities from
facilitating local groups to produce their own activities in the City centre, such as the Italian
festival the Portuguese festival, the Polish festival, African Splash, Diwali festival and a new
introduction for 2014, a Latvian festival, enabling them to bring cultural activities to the widest
audience as possible. The Councils operations team also producing high calibre activities for the
City from managing the city’s tourism centre

•

The City benefits from set calendar events from the Christmas lights switch on, Music on the
square and the Great Eastern Run. The team also support a wide range of commercial events
such as the Willow festival, concerts and the Beer festival. During 2013 the team delivered and
supported over 34 distinct cultural events for the City

•

The Arts have seen tremendous growth in the last two years, with the development and
expansion of a new programme at the Key Theatre and its development into a cultural ’hub’, to
the reopening of the Broadway for a winter session, both have shown a real appetite for a rich
and diverse programme, including comedy, drama, dance, spoken word, music, film and
community projects and activities.

1

Cities outlook 2014

4|Page

20

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

•

The City Gallery’s introduction of support programmes, such as Saturday art schools and life
drawing and the success of the Open Exhibition, giving artists living in the Peterborough area,
offering showcase opportunities; alongside the national and international exhibition
programme,

•

The Arts Festival has developed into a true international festival in every sense, welcoming acts
and performers from across to world to developing arts activities with local communities,
eliminating barriers of language and background.

The City hosts a range of National Portfolio organisations and established arts organisations:
•

Eastern Angles, Britten Sinfonia, Metal, NNF (Bridge Organisation), Metal and SeaChange Arts
all have growing relationships that are embedded in the city. These groups have made significant
inroads in developing local groups and audiences and producing insightful and quality
experiences for the people of Peterborough.

The City has an emerging musical offer:
•

The City’s Music Hub is delivering a three year programme of music, funded through national
government, which is due to be extended through another funding cycle and will develop a
singing strategy, school CPD, access to musical instruments to all children in Peterborough
schools and school engagement;

•

The growth and development of music has been extended through the development of the
City’s choirs, Peterborough Singers and other choirs in the city has seen an active up take of
singing activities, with the Male Voice choir achieving national awards and success and Sing
Peterborough leading on the development of a new singing strategy, making use of assets such
as the Cathedral and Broadway theatre.

•

Independent groups are growing in the City from Blok Collective, Peterborough Music Makers,
Creative Peterborough to Beat This who are now winning commissions and developing their
practices, more groups are being enabled to be independent and stainable for the further.

•

Peterborough hosts independent organisations offering lessons and sessions in dance of all
varieties, music, singing, drama and art, both our libraries and our children’s centre offer
‘culture’ for the very young from Wildcats and Fit to dance.

The City has a strong Literature offer:
•

The City’s Literature scene has growth from strength to strength through the tradition of the
City’s annual poet laureate competition to the developments at John Clare Cottage and the
introduction of the We Love Words festival, bringing international authors and writers to
Peterborough.

5|Page

21

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

The City’s heritage attractions have not just a rich past but also an exciting future:
•

Peterborough Museum is working in partnership with the Natural History Museum to bring Real
World Science to Peterborough schools by providing free, stimulating, hands on workshops.
Vivacity heritage attractions are not only providing access to historic venues and the rich stories
of Peterborough but are also providing a real and engaging context for the City.

•

The Cathedral, has received a grant from the Heritage Lottery Fund for £2.4 million to enable
the Cathedral to offer visitors a richer appreciation of life of the buildings past and present. The
development will include a new heritage centre, which will not only benefit the Cathedral but all
heritage attractions in the City, through joint programmes and activity. The Cathedral is gearing
up to celebrate its 900th anniversary.

•

Flag Fen now hosts eight prehistoric Bronze Age log boats, found near the site at Must Farm.
Most of the boats are in an incredible state of preservation due to the wetland nature of the
area. Many were virtually intact and some have elaborate features including lifting handles,
grooves for transom boards, sterns and evidence of decoration and are now being conserved for
future generations at Flag Fen and are open to the public to view. This find has international
significance and is a great opportunity to raise the profile of heritage in the City and country.

There are opportunities for school children to experience and enjoy culture:

•

The Schools offer has grown through partnerships with many cultural organisations offering both
on site and classroom experiences where pupils can develop new skills and lifelong learning
opportunities.

•

Pupils’ cultural contributions are celebrated through the Music awards and the young people
film awards, held every year in the City with growing attendance.

There are opportunities for young people to acquire (some of) the skills that can support a career in
culture:
•

Degree courses are available at university centre Peterborough from, Performing arts,
archaeology, community arts and theatre practice, English literature to media studies. Giving
pupils the opportunity to develop and learn within their own city, retaining and using the city’s
talent

•

Peterborough’s young people are benefitting from a new three year programme Peterborough
Cultural Partnership, supported through the NNF (Bridge Organisation), that has identified four
strands: encouraging young cultural leadership activity; developing and commissioning events
and activities which are young people led and focused; creating opportunities for arts and
cultural focused professional development; and to develop brokerage between the arts and
cultural offer with schools

6|Page

22

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

The City has made progress in raising its profile:
•

The City has achieved for the first time European funding for culture, becoming part of the
ZEPA2 consortium, which aims to develop the sustainability of the arts festival, making links with
Europe and producing a high-quality format, which will attract further investment.

•

Peterborough has also been successful in attracting funding for a national project, Creative
People and places, which will see local groups organising themselves to champion culture.
Creative People and Places, a nationally funded project, will set up networks and micro-funding
opportunities for projects and will generate, within two years, a following of over 1000 members
(organisations and individual); the group already has at least 250 active members, including Step
Up Community Association.

There is a real appetite and need for ensuring a rich, diverse and relevant programme across the
disciplines: comedy, drama, dance, spoken word, music, film and community projects and activities.
There will be a key role to be played by both Vivacity and its partner organisation Metal:
•

Vivacity is the Council’s strategic partner for culture and leisure; an independent charitable trust
responsible for the city’s Arts, Heritage, Library and Sports services. Vivacity has expert
knowledge and plays the lead role in the city for artist and audience development. It will build
on the national recognition secured for the three year Forty Years On project – an ambitious and
exciting programme of theatre, oral history and archive work, delivered in partnership with
Eastern Angles.

•

Metal, has been established in the City and is producing a programme to develop artists that live
locally and to map the current cultural activity in the City. Metal has also produced, with City
Council funding, a new website for networking culture and events across Peterborough,
www.idea1.org.uk. The website is open to anyone who wants to promote or list events in the
city, making it a new one stop shop for finding out what's happening today, tomorrow or this
month in Peterborough.

To build on – and bring coherence to – all of this activity, this strategy suggests three interlinked
priorities to be taken forward by all the cultural organisations active in the city, working towards a
common priorities and outcomes. These are
•

To further increase participation in and enjoyment of cultural activities and celebrate our
diversity – culture, connecting and reflecting our communities

•

To attract, develop, promote, retain and attract talent, including developing the local creative
economy, complementing the City’s growth

•

To create places and spaces for culture – using the public realm and our green open spaces to
ensure there are ‘places to go and things to do’
7|Page

23

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

Our legacy
This strategy is intended to secure two, mutually reinforcing benefits over the next five years:
•
•

To raise the profile of culture and increase participation in cultural activities within the City
To raise the profile of the City through culture and increase visitor numbers

As a result of the actions identified in this strategy, we expect:
•

More people to take part in cultural activities more often – tracked through the ‘citizen panel’
survey

•

More events to be taking place – tracked through online event guides, idea 1 and Visit Britain

•

More facilities being used to provide cultural activities – track through bookings and the cultural
strategy steering group.

The people of Peterborough – individuals and community groups – and potential visitors will know:
•

What’s on where and when;

•

Who to ask for advice, guidance and support if they want to take part in, support or host a
cultural event.

Cultural organisations, and their leaders, will develop:
•

The Know How to grow participation and develop audiences;

•

The programmes of work that are relevant to and supportive of Peterborough’s ambitions;

•

A compelling range of marketing materials and activities, promoting cultural activities.

Peterborough’s cultural community will be:
• Resilient – there will be a determined effort to grow memberships and audiences and to speak to
visitors from outside the City,
• Strategic – engaged in the long-term planning within the city to secure benefits for and from our
residents, our visitors, our businesses and investors,
• Collaborative – operating productive and mutually beneficial partnerships with other
organisations, individuals, community groups and businesses,

8|Page

24

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

• Ambitious – focussed relentlessly on the quality of the offer, with the skills, knowledge and
confidence to recognise, promote and support local performers, and
• Confident – enthusiastically promoting Peterborough.

Our priorities
Priority 1: More people, more often – increasing participation in and
enjoyment of cultural activities
Why this matters
Cultural activities enrich many people’s quality of life, offering enjoyment and self-fulfilment, and
offers opportunities to share experiences with others, helping to build and maintain a strong and
cohesive society.
Participation in culture plays an important part in providing people with positive activities and
transferable skills. Participation in culture is also vital in ensuring the health and wellbeing of our
citizens.
Peterborough is a vibrant, diverse, fast-growing and youthful city, which makes it an exciting place to
live. Peterborough’s diversity is vitally important to the people who live and work here.
Participation levels are currently low compared to national benchmarks, reflecting both the socioeconomic status of the City population and the lack of cultural infrastructure both inside and outside
the City centre.
However, Peterborough’s cultural offer has gained considerable momentum in recent years and now
has the opportunity to make a real difference and affect positive change through culture, through
drivers and dynamic programming from Vivacity to National Portfolio Organisations and local
groups, delivering high quality programmes and working with the community and arts practitioners
to develop and enhance skills.
Creative People and Places, a nationally funded programme, is aimed at increasing participation by
providing relevant and localised activities and programmes in a range of traditional and nontraditional locations, as well as developing the capacity of the City’s participatory culture and
voluntary sectors.
Peterborough needs to build audiences that actively engage, creating and shaping events. This will
be delivered through a combination of programming, producing and utilising national tours to bring
national significant work and productions to Peterborough.
Participation is also about communication. It is vital that all partners help communicate the breadth
of cultural activities available, not simply their own, so that everyone knows what is on offer.
The youthful and diverse population are enthusiastic users of digital technologies and with the City’s
investment in high speed fibre infrastructure, new delivery and engagement mechanisms can be
exploited for the benefit of culture in the City. In a City such as Peterborough, access to different
forms of culture relevant to the local population is important and will help increase the number of
people taking part in cultural activities.
9|Page

25

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

What will be done
Peterborough City Council is committed to creative engagement and participation across all areas in
Peterborough – involving people to enable them to make their own decisions about what excites
them, and to ensure that the cultural offer is relevant to local people.
Peterborough has a range of excellent cultural institutions and programmes which residents can
enjoy. However, many residents would like to engage more in cultural activities but encounter a
range of barriers including time, transport, price, availability of information and familiarity.
• Work with internal departments, such as City Operations, travel choice and Children’s Services to
sustain and extend engagement through service and partnerships
• Work with our strategic partner, Vivacity, to sustain and extend engagement
• Support the development of inclusive and inspiring programmes within Peterborough City centre
and surrounding Wards.
• Support targeted programmes such as Creative People and Places aimed at priority groups and
prioritised engagement.
• Promotion and development of events programmes for the City and development of the night
time economy and activity; visibility that Peterborough is a diverse cultural City
• Develop the role of culture as an integral part of wellbeing, especially in combating physical and
mental health issues
What will be achieved

•

Increased participation with a range of audiences, especially amongst young people the elderly,
diverse communities and the voluntary cultural organisations

•

Increased use of public spaces for cultural activity

•

Visible practice and collaboration within the City which enables groups and organisations to
grow

•

Cultural leaders across the sector are open to ideas and facilitate others through creative
networks

•

A greater understanding and confidence of Peterborough’s potential as a creative city
recognised as active and vibrant

•

Increased membership of cultural and voluntary organisations
10 | P a g e

26

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

Priority 2: Developing, retaining and attracting people with talent
Why this matters
Local people value the opportunity to make a contribution through engaging in cultural
opportunities, these are beneficial in developing individuals’ confidence and transferable skills as
well as creating strong communities. People who actively participate in cultural activity are more
likely to take a role in shaping their communities in other areas too. More people could benefit from
volunteering opportunity within the culture sector2.
More opportunities for young people to develop as cultural leaders are needed, from the continued
support and promotion of the arts award as a way of recognising their achievements, to increasing
opportunities to lead, manage and curate cultural activity through the Young Producers networks.
This will be provided through the Creative people and places programme and the Peterborough
cultural partnership. The basic entitlement will be through schools and colleges, with additional
programmes for those who do not or cannot access culture in these settings, and further support for
children and young people with identified talent.
Young people will be entitled to quality cultural activities within and beyond the school curriculum,
utilising opportunities such as the Peterborough Learning Partnership, Children’s University, where
children receive a stamp for each hour of activity in order to work towards the national certificates,
accessing a wider range of cultural activities and venues across the city. To provide this entitlement,
a wide-ranging partnership between the relevant parts of the public, private, voluntary, faith and
third sectors, as well as residents is required.
Peterborough has benefited from of number national portfolio organisations working and delivering
quality programmes in Peterborough. The City is now at the starting point with one of the
organisations, Metal, taking up permanent residence in Peterborough and integrating with other city
providers. This new development, in partnership working, underpins the need to maximise local
resources and build capacity in the cultural sector. Both Vivacity and Metal are key in attracting,
developing and retaining cultural producers and programmers in the City. Programmes such as
Community Bridge Builders, Connection–Culture and Chamber of Culture are underway through the
Creative People and Places programme to deliver this priority. All areas of work intend to develop
skills and confidence, producing sustainable models of delivery and cultural programmes.

2

The value of arts and culture to people and society, Arts Council England 2014

11 | P a g e

27

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

What will be done
Peterborough will develop opportunities for the next generation of cultural producers and
practitioners, innovative and imaginative programming brokering new relationships between
professional and non-professionals and cultural organisations, providing pathways through early
years to higher education. These projects will experiment with programmes, locations and forms,
and set ambitious targets for increasing levels of participation, both in numbers and levels of
activity. There will be new pathways to excellence, developing talent and retention
• Work with learning partners across the city to support and encourage learning at all ages through
culture.
• Promote the empowering role of informal learning in underpinning personal and community
development, through reading, creative activity and cultural experiences.
• Support continuing professional development activities for cultural producers and programmers,
through programmes such as Creative people and places, cultural producers networks and
Peterborough cultural partnership
• Continued support and celebrating excellence through the Arts Award and the children’s
university
• Support the development for phase two of the music hub and music partnership to support
young people through music pathways
• Support local and national cultural programmes which inspire cultural development
What will be achieved

•

A current and relevant cultural offer to all schools.

•

Pathways and opportunities for young people to develop skills and to stay or return to the City.

•

Sharing of knowledge and experience, development of skills within the City.

•

CPD opportunities to develop and enhance skills, an increase in the number of creative courses
offered in Peterborough.

•

Developing and signposting to creative practitioners in the City.

•

The development of cultural hubs.

12 | P a g e

28

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

•

An increase in the numbers of national portfolio organisations working and staying in
Peterborough

•

A Peterborough based National Portfolio Organisation

Priority 3: Places to go and things to do – making the best use of our
city spaces
Why this matters
Peterborough is an historic City ringed by new town development, it is essential that cultural
services are developed in order to maintain and increase the vitality of the City to ensure that the
growth becomes a strength.
One of the ambitions for this strategy is to use culture to reconnect the satellite settlements to the
City, both physically and emotionally, where public space and cultural resources become the
meeting points, and places for great art and cultural activity, that draws from the city’s many and
diverse communities. Research shows that people are increasingly going to lead more isolated lives,
with many working from home and/or living alone. Opportunities to meet in a variety of free public
spaces and commercial premises for a wide variety of purposes will therefore become increasingly
important and valued.
Peterborough has a number of venues and facilities focused in the City centre which produce
excellent work and programmes, however the City does not have the venues or facilities which
would be associated with Cities of a similar size. Peterborough does not have a cultural quarter like
many other comparable Cities. In order to improve access to cultural activities, Peterborough needs
to improve or open up access to cultural facilities in the city centre and the surrounding Wards,
delivering programmes at the neighbourhood level, using facilities in the community and vacant
properties.
Key organisations across the City play a valuable role in running and programming cultural venues,
with many supported through volunteers and membership, giving opportunities to local, national
and international groups. Opportunities need to be given to enable groups, practitioners and
producers to find and use spaces within the City that are not necessary under organisational
umbrellas, the City needs to map current venues and spaces, both commercial and vacant and
produce a space plan for the City, producing a sign post for City spaces where people can broker
activity.
Broadening access to spaces within the City for cultural activities will have a direct impact on the
City’s economy. The cultural offer within the City is an integral part of the success of Peterborough’s
tourism; a reason for people to come and to stay. It is also a key contributor to the quality of life that
are important both in retaining existing business and attracting new employers and investors.
Commercial events and visible, free, cultural programmes across the City have a key role to play at
the best of times. However, in times of recession, this role is arguably even more important.
This will be achieved through raising public confidence and activity in the City, stimulating secondary
spend and keeping a sense of year round vibrancy. In order to achieve this the City needs to support
space development and access.

13 | P a g e

29

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

What will be done
Peterborough’s City Spaces will develop a stronger cultural infrastructure through the development
of networks, capacity and relationships, making links with the public realm works and exploiting
underutilised spaces within the City. The aim is to support high quality programming and the
production of new work through accessing and utilising under used spaces across the city.
•

Review all our community assets, including school buildings and libraries to understand how and
where cultural activity can be accessed and supported

•

Exploring the potential for creating a cultural quarter

•

Support creative activities – in the community, in libraries, in the museum, in the cathedral, in
our parks and open spaces

•

Highlight the role of culture in relevant investment strategies such as the Visitor economy
strategy.

•

Mapping and utilisation of spaces within the City for cultural activity, exploiting existing assets,
creating an online directory of venues and spaces, where people can broker/book activities and
space (guidance/signposting)

•

Work with partners to develop and strengthen new initiatives for the City’s cultural calendar:
idea 1 website for Events promotion – to residents, businesses, visitors

•

Continue to use current resources effectively to support cultural provision for the City; maintain
and developing the quality, freshness and uniqueness of programmes

What will be achieved
•

A space policy for council assets

•

A space plan of the city, current assets, free and commercial

•

Clear guidance and signposting on how to book public space

•

Increased use of current city assets, from the public, private and third sector venues

•

Development of community assets to increase access to joined up services

•

Growth of cultural companies resident in the City

•

The development and use of school facilities for community use

14 | P a g e

30

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

•

Creating new audiences to feed demand for activity

•

Recognition for the creative industries in the City and the value they add to everybody’s lives

Moving forward: Keeping on track
The Cultural Strategy recognises the significance of the cultural and creative sectors in making
Peterborough a cultural city, and advocates continued support in culture and cultural activities. The
strategy also addresses concerns facing the sector and considers how to maximise opportunities for
the cultural life of Peterborough to flourish.
Peterborough City Council is well placed to lead the development of the strategy and to oversee its
delivery. However, the diverse nature and scope of the cultural sector is such that a range of other
organisations will be central to ensuring that there is full engagement in the process. This is
particularly the case in Peterborough where the City Council already has predominantly a
commissioning role and operates via a network of funded delivery partners.
The development of the strategy was overseen by the Cultural Strategy Steering Group. This
successful partnership approach and the subsequent consultation on the strategy suggests the need
for a small executive group informed by and interconnected with a wider consultative forum. It is
therefore proposed to establish a core delivery group – Culture Peterborough – supported and
informed by a wider creative forums, such as Creative People and Places, Creative Peterborough,
Peterborough Cultural partners and Peterborough learning partners. Together, this creative alliance
of organisations, individuals and artists will take ownership of the strategy and oversee its delivery.
The consortium will be built around the major cultural institutions in the City. The group will be an
open and relatively free-form group that has seamless links with the wider cultural sector.
Specifically, the group will look at ways of involving the commercial and private sector within the
consortium.
The proposed functions of Culture Peterborough will include:
• Inform, own and oversee the delivery of this strategy;
• Provide a voice for the sector;
• Networking, lobbying and information-sharing;
• Seek resources to deliver the strategy;
• Make strategic connections with and contribute to the Local Enterprise Partnership
• Advise on selected projects and programmes;
• Encourage collaboration in the sector;
• Monitor progress on the strategy and other key cultural projects.
The City Council will play a central role in the Culture Peterborough group and will support the
development of the Forum. The specific priorities for the Council will include:
• Advocating the importance of culture;
• Supporting partnership working;
15 | P a g e

31

APPENDIX 1

Culture Peterborough Strategy
Draft 07/07/2014

• Delivering selected events and programmes;
• Commissioning and funding key programmes and events;
• Linking culture to other key city priorities;
• Liaising with national and regional cultural bodies on behalf of the city.

Delivering the strategy
The budget challenge
Culture and the creative sector will not be immune from the unprecedented public spending
deficit faced by the UK and the City. Work is already underway between the City Council and the
sector to identify responses to the challenges ahead. In summary, the overarching approach will
include:
• Greater collaboration and synergy between organisations, artists, programmes and projects;
• Seeking to drive down costs through shared services; smarter procurement, review of delivery
structures, and where possible engagement of volunteers;
• New income streams – by differentiated products and pricing, capturing income that is
currently benefiting out of city organisations, a City approach to event ticketing, cross-selling,
new approaches to sponsorship and naming rights and continuing success in attracting grant
income, making sure Peterborough gets its fair share.
• The alignment of culture with the emerging City and national agendas e.g. localism, Big Society,
thriving district/local centres, personalisation and the Local Enterprise Partnership. This should
include seeking new partnerships with community organisations, corporate bodies, City agencies
and the changing regional/national cultural bodies.
Action Planning
Progress on delivering the strategy will be done in three ways:
• Open annual review involving the sector and wider public each year;
• Annual action plan setting out what needs to be done, by whom and by when;
• Agree a set of indicators which measure strategic progress (e.g. participation levels) and also
measure progress of key programmes and projects. The indicators will also take account of the
objectives and outcomes set by key partners such as Arts Council England. As national
performance indicators disappear, a key measure of success will be customer, citizen and tourist
satisfaction with the city’s cultural programmes.

16 | P a g e

32

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 7

16 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance
Contact Officer – Dania Castagliuolo, Governance Officer, Scrutiny
Contact Details – (01733) 452347 or email Dania.castagliuolo@peterborough.gov.uk

REVIEW OF 2013/2014 AND WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2014/15
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

To provide the Committee with a review of the work undertaken during 2013/14 and to develop
a work programme for 2014/15.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That the Committee considers the 2013/2014 year in review and makes recommendations on
the future monitoring of these items where necessary.

2.2

That the Committee determines its priorities, and develops a work programme for the
forthcoming year.

3.

REVIEW OF 2013/14

3.1

The Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee was established by Council at its
annual meeting on 18 May 2009. During the year 2013 -2014, the Committee considered the
following issues:
Information / Update
• Review of 2012/13 and Future Work Programme
Monitoring / Calling to Account
• Impact of the Welfare Reform
• Value for Money - Vivacity
• Commercial Operations
• Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion, Safety and
Public Health
• Culture and Heritage
• Heritage Ambition
• Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for Environment Capital and
Neighbourhoods
• Scrutiny in a Day: Understanding and Managing the Impacts of Welfare Reform on
Communities in Peterborough
• Overarching Culture Strategy
• Vivacity – Annual Report and Business Plan
CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
• Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2011-2014 (2013 Revision)
• Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Priority Progress Update – Reducing Crime
• Overview of the Operation Can Do Programme
• Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Priority Progress Update – Tackling anti-social
behaviour and hate crime

33

•
•

Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Priority Progress Update – Building stronger and
more supportive communities
Fly Tipping – Prosecution Records

Policy / Plans / Consultation
• Draft Homelessness Strategy 2013 – 2018
• Proposed Selective Licensing for the Gladstone, Millfield New England and Eastfield Areas
of Peterborough
• Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Priority Progress Update
• Commercial Operations Plan 2014 – 15
• Budget 2014/15 and Medium Term Financial Plan
As the Council’s designated Crime and Disorder Committee the Committee considered the
following issues:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan 2011 – 2014 (2013 Revision)
Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Priority Progress Update – Reducing Crime
Overview of the Operation Can Do Programme
Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Priority Progress Update – Tackling Antisocial
Behaviour and Hate Crime
Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Priority Progress Update – Building Stronger and
more Supportive Communities
Fly Tipping – Prosecution Records
Reducing Reoffending Through Behaviour Change

No Call-in’s were received by this Committee during 2013/2014.
3.2

For the information of the Committee, copies of the recommendations made during the year are
attached at Appendix 1.

4.

WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15

4.1

In accordance with the Constitution, the Committee is responsible for setting its own
programme in line with the Council’s key priorities and the Committee’s remit.

4.2

The Committee’s remit is:
To review and scrutinise the delivery of the Sustainable Community Strategy priority of creating
strong and supportive communities.
This will include reviewing and scrutinising the
performance of other public bodies in their activities and performance in the delivery of the
Single Delivery Plan targets.
Hold the Executive to account for the discharge of functions in the following ways:
•
•
•

by exercising the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet
implemented by the Executive or key decisions which have been delegated to an officer.
by scrutinising Key Decisions which the Executive is planning to take, as set out in the
Forward Plan
by scrutinising Executive decisions after they have been implemented, as part of a wider
policy review.

To review and scrutinise the planning, decisions, policy development, service provision and
performance relating to the following service areas:
•
•
•
•

Cohesion
Cultural Services
Neighbourhood Services
City Centre

34

To assist and advise the Council and the Executive in the development of its budget and policy
framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues in relation to the terms of reference of the
committee.
Make recommendations to the Executive and/or Council arising from overview and scrutiny
activity.
Establish ad-hoc Task and Finish Groups to investigate specific topics on behalf of the
Committee on a time-limited basis.
To undertake all of the Council’s statutory functions in accordance with Sections 19 & 20 and
associated regulations of the Police and Justice Act 2006, relating to scrutiny of crime and
disorder matters, including acting as the Council’s crime and disorder committee.
4.3
5.

A draft work programme which shows the items which are currently scheduled along with items
carried over from last year is attached at Appendix 2.
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

5.1

Minutes of the Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee held on 4 June, 24
July, 11 September, 19 November 2013, 15 January, and 26 March 2014.

6.

Appendices

6.1

Appendix 1 - Responses to recommendations made during 2013/2014
Appendix 2 – Draft Work Programme 2014/15

35

This page is intentionally left blank

36

37

4 June 2013
Draft
Homelessness
Strategy 2013 –
2018

MEETING DATE /
ITEM

(i) Change the wording in the report to provide
clarity that the Steering Group had been key to
the development of the new draft
Homelessness Strategy.
(ii) Include in the report additional data with
regard to:
a. local levels of housing needs and
affordability for families within the region for
comparison.
b. comparative data regarding neighbouring
authorities and homelessness presentations
compared to Peterborough
(iii) Include achievements such as the
reduction in the number of rough sleepers

1. Note the findings of the Homelessness
Review;
2. Agree with the strategic objectives set out in
the Homelessness Strategy 2013 – 2018.
3. Approve the Draft Homelessness Strategy
and recommends it to Cabinet and Full Council
for adoption.
4. The Committee recommends that the
covering report be redrafted to include the
following amendments prior to presentation to
Cabinet:

The Committee:

RECOMMENDATION

Sean Evans

REFERRED TO

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMISSION
RECOMMENDATIONS MADE DURING 2013-2014

The report will be updated to provide clarity that the
steering group had been key to the development of
the draft strategy and will include details of our
achievements prior to being taken forward to
cabinet.

Email from S. Evans received on 5 July 2013. We
have taken on board the recommendations of the
committee and have commenced the research to
inform the Homelessness review document. Much
of the content of the review was repeated in the
report for committee so both will need to be
amended to include all of the recommended
information.

RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATIONS

APPENDIX 1

38

Safer
Peterborough
Partnership Plan
2011 – 2014

15 January 2014

Safer
Peterborough
Partnership Plan
2011-2014

24 July 2013

Safer
Peterborough
Partnership Plan
2011-2014 (2013
Revision)

MEETING DATE /
ITEM

Gary Goose

Gary Goose

REFERRED TO

The Committee recommends that the refreshed Gary Goose
Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan remains a
three year plan.

The Committee recommends that the Police
and Crime Commissioner considers retention
payments for Special Constables as this could
encourage more Special Constables to join the
police force.

across the city which has been a nationally
recognised piece of work, reduction in front
desk waiting times and changes that have
improved access to the service.
The Committee note the report and
recommend that the Safer & Stronger
Peterborough Strategic Manager revise the
Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan to reflect
the change in Neighbourhood Services and the
removal of the Neighbourhood Committees.
This revision to be completed before being
presented to Cabinet for approval.

RECOMMENDATION

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMISSION
RECOMMENDATIONS MADE DURING 2013-2014

This was referred on to the Safer Peterborough
Partnership on 29 January for consideration and
adopted in the new Safer Peterborough Partnership
Plan 2014 – 2017.

The Police and Crime Panel is responsible for
supporting and challenging the Commissioner,
though he welcomes cooperation and
communication with a multitude of partners, other
agencies and elected representatives. The
Commissioner is very happy to meet the Chairman
of the panel, as he is all elected representatives, to
talk about the recruitment and retention of Specials.

Response received on 1 July from G Goose: I can
confirm that I have redrafted the plan to take into
account the recommendation made by Committee
on 4th June; the redraft was presented back to the
Safer Peterborough Partnership Board on 26th
June. The Board wish me to make further
amendments before circulating to members
electronically for agreement. This will be done by
end of Friday 5th July.

RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATIONS

APPENDIX 1

39

Safer
Peterborough
Partnership Plan
2014 – 2017

26 March 2014

MEETING DATE /
ITEM

The inclusion of the Strong and Supportive
Communities Scrutiny Committee in the
Structure chart.

Details of the role of Scrutiny within the plan,
along with an explanation of the role of the
Committee.

Details of how public confidence in the police
and Local Authority will be increased, making it
a key area of work and describing how this will
be monitored.

The Committee recommends to the Safer and
Stronger Peterborough Strategic Manager that
the following is added to the Safer
Peterborough Partnership Plan 2014 – 2017:

RECOMMENDATION

Gary Goose

REFERRED TO

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMISSION
RECOMMENDATIONS MADE DURING 2013-2014

The SPP Governance Framework at section 5.6 of
the plan has been amended to show the Strong
and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee.

A new section has been added to the plan at 2.7
setting out the role of the Strong and Supportive
Communities Scrutiny Committee in its statutory
duty to scrutinise the SPP Plan

Public confidence in the activities of agencies within
the Safer Peterborough Partnership, including the
police and the local authority, is critical and is given
due prominence in the SPP Plan under the heading
of Communications (Fear of Crime) at section 6.16.
Performance against this area of business will be
monitored monthly via the SPP Delivery Group with
a performance report presented bi-monthly at SPP
Board.

RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATIONS

APPENDIX 1

This page is intentionally left blank

40

41

Draft Report 14
August
Final Report 21
August

3 September

Contact Officer: Paul Stevenette

Contact Officer: Jawaid Khan
Review of Library Services

Contact Officer: Belinda Child
Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme

Contact Officer: Mark Woolner
Homelessness Strategy

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Safer Peterborough Partnership – Priority 1 –
Addressing Crime by Tackling Offending

Contact Officer: Dominic Hudson

Contact Officer: Mark Woolner
Vivacity - Culture Strategy

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Safer Peterborough Partnership – Role of the
Committee

16 July 2014

Draft Report 27
June
Final Report 4
July

Item

Meeting Date

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15
Timing

Progress

UPDATED 3 JULY 2014

42

Draft Report 30
October
Final Report 6
November

18 November
2014

Contact Officer: Adrian Chapman
Connecting Families

To scrutinise and comment on the progress of the portfolio
of the Cabinet Member.

Contact Officer: Mark Woolner
Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for
Planning and Housing Services

Contact Officer: Cate Harding/Jon Lewis
CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Priority 3 –
Building Stronger and Safer Communities

Contact Officer: Dominic Hudson
Community Assets, Rationalisation Programme

To scrutinise and comment on the progress of the portfolio
of the Cabinet Member.

Contact Officer: Mark Woolner
Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for City
Centre Management, Culture & Tourism

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Safer Peterborough Partnership – Priority 2 – Tackling
Antisocial Behaviour

15 October
2014

Draft Report 26
September
Final Report 3
October

Item

Meeting Date

Timing

Progress

UPDATED 3 JULY 2014

43

Draft Repot 2
March
Final Report 9
March

19 March 2015

Draft Report 24
December
Final Report 2
January

14 January
2015

Meeting Date

Contact Officer: Mark Woolner

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Safer Peterborough Partnership – Approval of Annual
Refresh

Contact Officer: Adrian Chapman

Contact Officer: Annette Joyce
Scrutiny in a Day Outcomes – Impact Report

Contact Officer: Mark Woolner
Tourism Strategy

Contact Officer: Mark Woolner
Review of the Peterborough Communities and Safety
Delivery Model

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Refresh

Contact Officer: Adrian Chapman

Item

Timing

Progress

UPDATED 3 JULY 2014

44

Contact Officer: Annette Joyce

To note and comment on the work of Commercial
Operations and propose further scrutiny in relation to its
business activities.

Contact Officer: Kevin Tighe/ Dominic Hudson
Commercial Operations Plan

To review and comment on Vivacity’s performance and the
draft business plan.

Vivacity – Annual Report and Business Plan

Item

Timing

Selective Licensing or Equivalent Scheme - Belinda Child

Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for Communities and Environment Capital

Fly-tipping Pilot – Adrian Chapman

Police and Crime Commission – Gary Goose

Regulatory Services – Donna Hall

Review of Business Plan – Vivacity – Dominic Hudson/Kevin Tighe

Localism Strategy – Adrian Chapman

To be programmed into work programme:

Meeting Date

Progress

UPDATED 3 JULY 2014

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 8

16 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

This is a regular report to the Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee outlining
the content of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1

The latest version of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions is attached at Appendix 1. The Plan
contains those key decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or
individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new key decisions to be taken after 25 July
2014.

3.2

The information in the Forward Plan of Key Decisions provides the Committee with the
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to
request further information.

3.3

If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

3.4

As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

4.

CONSULTATION

4.1

Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of Key
Decisions.

5.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None
6.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Key Decisions

45

This page is intentionally left blank

46

47

PUBLISHED: 27 JUNE 2014

PETERBOROUGH CITY
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN
OF KEY DECISIONS

48

AB

All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedecisions. If you wish to make comments or representations
regarding the 'key decisions' outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Governance Support Officer using the form attached. For your information, the
contact details for the Council's various service departments are incorporated within this Plan.

You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker
prior to the decision being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for
photocopying or postage. Documents listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Gemma George,
Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to
gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. For each decision a public report will be available from the Governance Team one
week before the decision is taken.

The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the
meeting in private has been given).

Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be
some business to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information. In these circumstances the
meeting may be held in private, and on the rare occasion this applies this is indicated in the list below. A formal notice of the intention to hold the meeting,
or part of it, in private, will be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis. Each new Plan
supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming Plans. Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be
included on the form which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department,
Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by
telephone on 01733 452268.

If the decision is to be taken by an individual cabinet member, the name of the cabinet member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the
councillor’s portfolio. If the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, it’s members are as listed below:
Cllr Cereste (Leader); Cllr Elsey; Cllr Fitzgerald; Cllr Hiller, Cllr Holdich (Deputy Leader); Cllr North; Cllr Seaton; Cllr Serluca and Cllr Scott.

In the period commencing 28 days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the
issues set out below. Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of
£500,000 and/or have a significant impact on two or more wards in Peterborough.

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

49

Joint Venture
Implementation KEY/25JUL14/02
To approve the
implementation of the
Joint Venture.

Councillor
Marco Cereste
Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Growth,
Strategic
Planning,
Housing,
Economic
Development
and Business
Engagement

July 2014

22 Sep 2014

Cabinet

Peterborough Flood
Risk Management
Strategy KEY/25JUL14/01

For Cabinet to approve
the Draft Peterborough
Flood Risk Management
Strategy for public
consultation.

DATE
DECISION
EXPECTED

DECISION
MAKER

KEY DECISION
REQUIRED

N/A

N/A

MEETING
OPEN TO
PUBLIC

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

RELEVANT
SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Relevent internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

CONSULTATION

KEY DECISIONS FROM 25 JULY 2014

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

Julia Chatterton
Flood and Water
Management Officer
Tel: 01733 452620
julia.chatterton@peterb
orough.gov.uk

CONTACT DETAILS /
REPORT AUTHORS

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

DOCUMENTS
RELEVANT TO
THE DECISION
SUBMITTED TO
THE DECISION
MAKER (IF ANY
OTHER THAN
PUBLIC REPORT)

50

To approve a framework
agreement and schedule
of rates to deliver
disabled facility grant
work, specifically
providing disabled access
to toilet and washing
facilities and associated
work in domestic
properties.

Care and Repair
Framework
Agreement KEY/18DEC12/01

To authorise the Chief
Executive, in consultation
with the Solicitor to the
Council, Executive
Director – Strategic
Resources, the Corporate
Property Officer and the
Cabinet Member
Resources, to negotiate
and conclude the sale of
Dickens Street Car Park.

Delivery of the
Council's Capital
Receipt Programme
through the Sale of
Dickens Street Car
Park - KEY/03JUL/11

Councillor Nigel
North
Cabinet Member
for Communities
and
Environment
Capital

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

August 2014

July 2014

N/A

N/A

Strong and
Supportive
Communities

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant Internal
Departments.

Consultation will
take place with
the Cabinet
Member, Ward
councillors,
relevant internal
departments &
external
stakeholders as
appropriate.

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS

Russ Carr
Care & Repair
Manager
Tel: 01733 863864
russ.carr@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

Richard Hodgson
Head of Strategic
Projects
Tel: 01733 384535
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

51

Expansion of Thorpe
Primary School KEY/13JUN14/03
Award of Contract for
the construction of a
new school buildings
and the refurbishment
and remodelling of
existing buildings to
accommodate the
expansion of Thorpe
Primary School (1 form
entry expansion).

Strategy for People
with Dementia and
their Carers KEY/04OCT13/05
To approve the
Strategy for People
with Dementia and
their Carers for
adoption.

To agree the
amendments to the
Affordable Housing
Capital Funding Policy.

Amendments to the
Affordable Housing
Capital Funding
Policy KEY/04OCT13/02

Councillor John
Holdich
Cabinet Member
for Education,
Skills and
University

Cabinet

Cabinet

July 2014

30 Jun 2014

28 Jul 2014

N/A

N/A

Yes

Creating
Opportunities
and Tackling
Inequalities

Health
Issues

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Emma Everitt
Project Support Officer
Tel: 01733 863660
emma.everitt@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

Rob Henchy
Commissioning
Manager
Tel: 01733 452429
rob.henchy@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

Service users,
relevant
departments and
Scrutiny
Commission for
Health Issues.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Richard Kay
Policy and Strategy
Manager
Tel: 01733 863795
richard.kay@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

52

Approval for the Council
to enter into a full
repairing lease with the
recommended provider
under the terms of the
Community Asset
Transfer Strategy.

Approval of
Community Asset
Transfer of Gladstone
Park Community
Centre KEY/24JAN14/03

To consult users and
carers/ family members
on proposals to develop a
dementia specific day
service.

The Vision for Older
People KEY/10JAN14/05

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

Cabinet

July 2014

22 Sep 2014

N/A

Yes

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital
Scrutiny
Committee

Scrutiny
Commission
for Health
Issues

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Emma Everitt
Project Support Officer
Tel: 01733 863660
emma.everitt@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

Nick Blake
Improvement &
Development Manager
Tel: 01733 452406
nick.blake@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

53

Award of Contract for
the Extension of
Discovery Primary
School KEY/21MAR14/01
Award of contract for
the extension of the
Discovery Primary
School to
accommodate
increased pupil
numbers.

Authorisation for the entry
into a statutory Section
75 Agreement, for an
initial two year period,
with the CCG for the
provision of a borderline
and Peterborough joint
child health and wellbeing
commissioning unit.

Section 75
Agreement with the
Clinical
Commissioning
Group (CCG) for the
Provision of a Joint
Child Health and
Wellbeing
Commissioning Unit KEY/21FEB14/01

Councillor John
Holdich
Cabinet Member
for Education,
Skills and
University

Councillor
Wayne
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member
for Adult Social
Care

July 2014

July 2014

N/A

N/A

Creating
Opportunities
and Tackling
Inequalities.

Scrutiny
Commission
for Health
Issues

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Programme Manager Secondary Schools
Development
Tel: 01733 863976
brian.howard@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

Oliver Hayward
Head of Business
Management
Tel: 01733 863910
oliver.hayward@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

54

Cabinet

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

Sale of the Herlington
Centre KEY/21MAR14/03
Delivery of the
Council’s capital
receipts programme
through the sale of the
Herlington Centre,
Orton Malborne.

Peterborough City
Council Customer
Strategy 2014 KEY/21MAR14/06
To approve the
Customer
Strategy. The vision is
to provide a range of
high-quality services
whilst maximising
customer satisfaction
and delivering these
services through
different channels at
the lowest reasonable
cost, whilst also
reducing or diverting
demand.

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

Sale of Greenwood
House KEY/21MAR14/02
Delivery of the
Council’s Capital
Receipt Programme
through the sale of
Greenwood House,
South Parade.

22 Sep 2014

July 2014

July 2014

Yes

N/A

N/A

Strong and
Supportive
Scrutiny
Committee

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Ricky Fuller
Head of Strategic
Commissioning/Transfo
rmation
Tel: 01733 452482
ricky.fuller@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

55

Councillor
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member
for Street Scene,
Waste
Management and
Communications

Councillor
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member
for Street Scene,
Waste
Management and
Communications

Award of Contract for
Build of a Household
Recycling Centre KEY/18APR14/03
To award a contract for
the build of a
household recycling
centre.

Cabinet Member
for Adult Social
Care
Cabinet Member
for Adult Social
Care

Formalise Integrated
Community
Equipment Service
Funding and
Commissioning
Arrangements KEY/18APR14/01
To formalise integrated
community equipment
service joint funding
arrangements.

Award of Contract for
Build of a Waste
Transfer Station KEY/18APR14/02
To award a contract for
the build of a waste
transfer station.

Councillor
Wayne
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member
for Adult Social
Care

Assistive Technology
Charging Policy KEY/04APR14/01
To amend the
Council’s charging
policy.

July 2014

July 2014

July 2014

July 2014

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Scrutiny
Commission
for Health
Issues

Scrutiny
Commission
for Health
Issues

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterb
orough.gov.uk

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterb
orough.gov.uk

Nick Blake
Improvement &
Development Manager
Tel: 01733 452406
nick.blake@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

Mark Gedney
Adult Social Care
Tel: 01733 452335
mark.gedney@peterbor
oughpct.nhs.uk

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

56

Councillor Nigel
North
Cabinet Member
for Communities
and
Environment
Capital

Councillor
Sheila Scott
Cabinet Member
for Children's
Services

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

Councillor John
Holdich
Cabinet Member
for Education,
Skills and
University

Future of the Eight
Former Play Centres KEY/02MAY14/01
To approve the
recommendations for
the eight former play
centres.

Contract Award for
16+ Supported
Accommodation KEY/02MAY14/04
To award a contract for
16+ supported
accommodation.

The Expansion of
Pheonix School KEY/02MAY14/05
To award a contract for
the expansion of
Pheonix School,
including the approval
of property, legal and
financial arrangements
for various enabling
with third parties.

Dogsthorpe Junior
School Academy
Conversion KEY/30MAY14/01
Closure of Dogsthorpe
Junior School,
academy transfer
agreement and lease
of premises.

July 2014

July 2014

July 2014

July 2014

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Creating
Opportunities
and Tackling
Inequalities

Creating
Opportunities
and Tackling
Inequalities

Creating
Opportunities
and Tackling
Inequalities

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Alison Chambers
Principal Assets Officer
(Schools)
Tel: 01733 863975
alison.chambers@pete
rborough.gov.uk

Brian Howard
Programme Manager Secondary Schools
Development
Tel: 01733 863976
brian.howard@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

Oliver Hayward
Head of Business
Management
Tel: 01733 863910
oliver.hayward@peterb
orough.gov.uk

Cate Harding
Neighbourhood
Manager
Tel: 317497
cate.harding@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

57

Cabinet

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

ICT Procurement KEY/27JUN14/01
Procurement and
implementation of
software to support the
councils transformation
programme.

Councillor John
Holdich
Cabinet Member
for Education,
Skills and
University

Councillor David
Seaton
Cabinet Member
for Resources

Draft Developer
Contributions
Supplementary
Planning Document KEY/13JUN14/02
For Cabinet to
comment on the draft
document.

Hampton College
Conversion KEY/30JUN14/02
Closure of Hampton
College, academy
transfer agreement and
lease of premises.

To enable Council
officers to be able to
print, copy and scan.

Print Managed
Services KEY/13JUN14/01

July 2014

28 Jul 2014

July 2014

September
2014

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital.

Creating
Opportunities
and Tackling
Inequalities

Sustainable
Growth and
Environment
Capital

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Relevant internal
and external
stakeholders.

Richard Godfrey
ICT and Transactional
Services Partnership
Manager
Tel: 01733 317989
richard.godfrey@peterb
orough.gov.uk

Richard Kay
Policy and Strategy
Manager
Tel: 01733 863795
richard.kay@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

Alison Chambers
Principal Assets Officer
(Schools)
Tel: 01733 863975
alison.chambers@pete
rborough.gov.uk

Ricky Fuller
Head of Strategic
Commissioning/Transfo
rmation
Tel: 01733 452482
ricky.fuller@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will any
further documents.

It is not anticipated
that there will be
any further
documents.

58

GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Director’s Office Stuart House, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD
Strategic Growth and Development Services
Strategic Housing
Planning Transport and Engineering (Development Management, Construction and Compliance, Infrastructure Planning and Delivery, Network
Management and Passenger Transport)
Commercial Operations (Strategic Parking and Commercial CCTV, City Centre, Markets and Commercial Trading and Tourism)

GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Communications
Legal and Governance Services
HR Business Relations (Training and Development, Occupational Health and Reward and Policy)
Strategic Regulatory Services
Performance Management

COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Strategic Commissioning
Safer Peterborough, Cohesion, Social Inclusion and Neighbourhood Management

ADULT SOCIAL CARE Executive Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Care Services Delivery (Assessment and Care Management and Integrated Learning Disability Services)
Mental Health
Public Health (including Health Performance Management)

CHILDREN’S SERVICES DEPARTMENT Executive Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Safeguarding Family and Communities
Education
School Improvement
Special Educational Needs / Inclusion and the Pupil Referral Service

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Executive Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Strategic Finance
Internal Audit
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning)
Corporate Property
Waste and Energy
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support)

59

This page is intentionally left blank

60

